1954

Vito Todaro and Guiseppe Fontana v. J. D. Gardner : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On February 20, 1948, the Respondent filed his complaint in the Superior Court of the State of Arizona, in and for the County of Maricopa, (Exhibit P-14) wherein he alleges that on the 28th day of June 1947 he loaned to appellants the sum of \$5,000.00, and in his second cause of action in said complaint contained he sets forth and alleges the particulars under which he allegedly loaned the Appellants said \$5,000.00.

The appellants filed their answer and later an amended answer to said complaint, denying the loan, but alleging that the respondent entered into an agreement with the appellants to purchase a certain motel of the appellants located in Arizona and attached to said (Exhibit P-14) is the agreement proposed but not signed by said parties.

The matter went to trial in said Superior Court, and at the conclusion of evidence, judgment was entered in favor of respondent, J. D. Gardner, and against the appellants herein for said sum of \$5,000.00.

Appellants herein then appealed to the Supreme Court of Arizona, and said judgment of the Superior Court of Maricopa County was reversed and the cause remanded to the trial court with directions to enter judgment for the defendants, (appellants herein) (Exhibit P-18).

Pursuant to the mandate of the Supreme Court of Arizona, the Superior Court of Maricopa County, Arizona, accordingly entered judgment in favor of the appellants herein and against the respondent herein for the sum of \$5,000.00 with interest at 6% per annum from June 27, 1949 until paid together with accruing costs until paid, in the sum of \$247.55 (Exhibit A).

On January 18, 1952 the appellants herein filed an action in the District Court of the Third Judicial District, in and for Salt Lake County, State of Utah, against the respondent herein upon the judgment of the Superior Court of Maricopa County, Arizona, and that the same had not been paid (R-1).

The responden, J. D. Gardner, filed his answer to said complaint, (R-4), admitting the allegations of paragraphs 1 and 2 of said complaint and admitting that on the 5th day of July 1951, an action was pending in the court of said Maricopa County, Arizona between said parties and that said parties had appeared in said action in person and by counsel and denies the other allegations of paragraph 3 of said complaint, and further denying that the defendant therein, (respondent herein) is indebted to appellants, herein and admits that no sum has been paid to appellants.

Respondent then interposes a "First affirmative defense" in which he alleges in substance that on the 28th day of June, 1947 he advanced to appellants herein the sum of \$5,000.00 to be used as a down payment on the purchase price of a motel upon the express conditions precedent that said money was only to be retained by the appellants herein if after further investigation the defendant, (respondent herein) was reasonably convinced that there was no risk involved to the operation of the property because of certain reasons he sets forth in his affirmative defense and that after investigation the respondent herein concluded that he would not go through with the agreement and that appellants were obligated to repay said \$5,000.00 to respondent herein (Tr. 4).

Pursuant thereto appellants herein filed a "Motion to Strike (Tr. 6), moving the court to strike from the answer of respondent herein said First Affirmative defense upon the grounds that said defense was not a pleadable defense to the complaint of the appellants herein, and that said affirmative defense does not state facts sufficient to entitle said respondent

herein to relief. Said motion was argued before the court and the appellants' herein motion to strike was denied (Tr. 8) and in due course the cause was set down for trial.

At the trial of the cause and after the appellants rested their case the respondent herein proceeded to introduce evidence in support of his affirmative defense, which evidence was timely objected to by appellants herein, upon the grounds that such evidence is not a pleadable defense to this action and that it does not state facts sufficient to entitle the defendant to any relief and that such matters are res adjudicata and same cannot be gone into as a set-off or counterclaim or otherwise, and that the court is not permitted to go into the merits of such a defense and that the court must give full faith and credit to the judgment of the State of Arizona. The court then overruled the objection and proceeded to trial (Tr. 16-17-18).

The court then took the matter under advisement and later rendered his decision in favor of the appellants herein for the sum of \$5,000.00 together with interest and court costs and directed counsel for appellants to prepare and file findings of facts and conclusions of law and judgment in accordance therewith (Tr. 90-90-91).

Respondent herein then files an objection to finding of fact and conclusion of law and judgment (Tr. 92). The matter was then argued and a brief of appellant was filed with the court on said matter which is contained in the exhibits but no mark of exhibit placed thereon. The court then took the matter under advisement and later reversed the court's decision and rendered judgment in favor of respondent for the sum

of \$5,000.00 and interest at 6% per annum from the 5th day of September, 1947 to the 2nd day of November, 1949 in the sum of \$647.50, and likewise rendered judgment in favor of the appellants herein for the sum of \$5,000.00 plus court costs in the sum of \$247.55, and concluded in the end that judgment for respondent should be in the net sum of \$399.95.

During the course of the trial and during the pre-trial it was agreed between counsel for the respective parties that pending the appeal of the cause of action in Arizona, the appellants herein had paid back to the respondent herein said sum of \$5,000.00 as is disclosed by paragraph 5 of the pre-trial order (Tr. 10).

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I

THE COURT ERRED IN DENYING THE MOTION OF THE APPELLANT TO STRIKE FROM THE ANSWER OF THE RESPONDENT, THE RESPONDENT'S FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE, AND THAT SAID ALLEGATIONS DO NOT STATE FACTS SUFFICIENT TO ENTITLE DEFENDANT TO RELIEF.

POINT II

THE COURT ERRED IN OVERRULING THE OBJECTION OF THE APPELLANTS TO THE INTRODUCTION OF ANY EVIDENCE OF THE RESPONDENT IN

SUPPORT OF RESPONDENT'S FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE AND THAT SAID DEFENSE DOES NOT STATE FACTS SUFFICIENT TO ENTITLE RESPONDENT TO ANY RELIEF.

POINT III

THE COURT ERRED IN ENTERING JUDGMENT FOR THE RESPONDENT.

POINT IV

THE COURT ERRED IN ENTERING JUDGMENT FOR THE RESPONDENT FOR THE SUM OF \$5,000.00 AND INTEREST THEREON IN THE SUM OF \$647.50, OR A NET JUDGMENT OF \$399.95, AS A SET OFF OR COUNTERCLAIM OR OTHERWISE.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE COURT ERRED IN DENYING THE MOTION OF THE APPELLANT TO STRIKE FROM THE ANSWER OF THE RESPONDENT, THE RESPONDENT'S FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE, AND THAT SAID ALLEGATIONS DO NOT STATE FACTS SUFFICIENT TO ENTITLE DEFENDANT TO RELIEF.

It is apparently the contention of the respondent herein, that the defense interposed by him in this action was apparently not adjudicated in the Courts of Arizona in the original action, inasmuch as Respondent proceeded upon the theory of a loan and the Supreme Court of Arizona reversed the judgment of the Superior Court on this theory, and the Respondent apparently now contends he has a right to interpose a defense or cause of action upon a different theory, which he apparently contends was not determined by the Arizona Courts.

It is the contention of the Appellant herein, in support of his appeal, that:

- (a) That the affirmative defense interposed by Respondent in his answer to the complaint of the Appellant is res adjudicata and Respondent cannot again interpose a defense which would go to the merits of the case.

30 American Jur. Page 919, Par. 175.

"The application of the doctrine of res judicata to identical causes of action does not depend upon the identity or difference in the forms of the two actions. A judgment upon the merits bars a subsequent suit upon the same cause, though brought in a different form of action, and a party therefore cannot, by varying the form of action or adopting a different method of presenting his cause, escape the operation of the principal that one and the same cause of action shall not be twice litigated. On the other hand, the fact that a different form or measure of relief is asked does not preclude the application of the judgment to estop the maintenance of the second action." Freeman on Judgments, 5th Ed. Par. 684, pp. 1443 and 1444.

30 American Jr. Page 920, Par. 178.

"It is a fundamental principle of jurisprudence that material facts or questions which were in issue in a former action, and were there admitted or judicially determined are conclusively settled by a judgment rendered therein and that such facts or questions become *res judicata*, and may not again be litigated in a subsequent action between the same parties or their privies, regardless of the form the issue may take in the subsequent action, whether the subsequent action involves the same or different form of proceeding, or whether the second action is upon the same or a different cause of action, subject matter, claim, or demand, as the earlier action. In such cases, it is also immaterial that the two actions are based on different grounds, or tried on different theories, or instituted for different purposes, and seek different relief." (See authorities in Note 19 thereof).

30 American Jur. Page 923, Par. 179.

"The phase of the doctrine of *res judicata* precluding subsequent litigation of the same cause of action is much broader in its application than a determination of the question involved in the prior action; the conclusiveness of the judgment in such case extends not only to matters actually determined, but also to other matters which could properly have been determined in the prior action. This rule applies to every question falling within the purview of the original action, in respect to matters of both claims, and defense, which could have been presented by the exercise of due diligence."

30 Am. Jur. Page 932, Par. 187.

"Notwithstanding the general rule that a judgment rendered in an action involving a cause of action differ-

ent from that involved in a subsequent action is not conclusive as to matters not litigated in the former action, there are many cases in which the doctrine of res judicata is held or declared to be applicable to defenses which were not raised, but which could properly have been considered and determined, in the prior action, so that if the defendant neglects to set up the defense, he is concluded as to the existence thereof by the judgment rendered in the action, even though the subsequent action involves a different cause of action. In support of the rule, it has been held that a judgment in favor of the plaintiff is in adjudication, not merely as to the existence of the plaintiff's cause of action, but, as to the non existence of any defenses thereto. In justification of the rule, it has been declared that a defendant should not be permitted to split his defense and present them by piecemeal in successive actions growing out of the same transaction, that there must be an end to litigation, and that where a party has an opportunity to present his defense and neglects to do so the demands of the law require that he take the consequences."

Stephani v. Abbott et al, 30 P. (2d) 1033. Calif.

"It is not the policy of the law to allow a new and different suit between the same parties concerning the same subject matter, that has already been litigated. Neither will the law allow the parties to trifle with the courts by piecemeal litigation. When plaintiff was brought into court by defendant in the former case, she certainly knew her rights. If she wished to rescind the contract, or if she had rescinded it, as she said in her answer she had done, then and there was the time to present her pleadings and evidence, and insist upon all rights to which she was entitled under the law. If she could not get the award of the law upon the facts in the lower court, she could have appealed. She did not do so. She is now met by the presumption that

all the facts and matters in controversy were disposed of in the former suit, and the further presumption that the judgment in the former suit is correct. If she failed to assert her claim properly, or to present the proper evidence in the first suit, she will not now be permitted in a second to litigate it. The principles herein stated are elementary."

Logan City vs. Utah Power and Light Co. 16 Pac. (2d) 1097,
Utah.

"It is well stated that it is the duty of a party to interpose such defenses as it may have to an action brought against it, and, if it fails to do so, the resulting judgment is conclusive against it as to all matters of defense which were or might have been interposed. And likewise a party to a judgment is not entitled to have it vacated merely because of the existence of certain matters of defense of which it fails to avail itself on the trial."

Logan City v. Utah Power and Light Co., 44 Pac. (2d) 698.
Utah.

"And such a judgment is final, not only as to the matter actually determined, but also as to every other matter which might have been litigated by the parties, as part of the subject in controversy, but which was omitted from the case through negligence, or inadvertence, or even accident."

Everill v. Swan, 20 Utah 56, 57 P. 716.

"These additional matters, relied upon in the answer and which were stricken therefrom, could have been set up in the former action, and, not having been pleaded in that case, the judgment became conclusive, as an adjudication between the parties, not only as to matters actually determined, but also as to every other

matter which might have been litigated by the parties as a part of the subject in controversy, but which was omitted from the case through negligence or inadvertence."

Peay vs. Salt Lake City, 11 Utah 331, 40 P. 206.

"The defendant can only be called upon to answer the material allegations of the complaint, and upon such allegations the issue is formed, and when judgment is rendered thereon by a court of exclusive jurisdiction, it is conclusive between the parties, upon the same matters, unless set aside by a court of last resort. And such a judgment is final, not only as to the matter actually determined, but also as to every other matter which might have been litigated by the parties, as part of the subject in controversy, but which was omitted from the case through negligence, or inadvertence, or even accident."

Gaskell et al vs. Wallace, 89 Pac. (2d) 687. Calif.

"It is equally well settled that a judgment rendered in a court of competent jurisdiction is res judicata not only on all questions actually litigated and decided, but on all others that might have been litigated in the action. A party is not permitted to split his demands or defenses. In Elm v. Sacramento Suburban Fruit Lands Co., 17 Pac (2d) 1003 this rule was thus announced:

"To this situation is clearly applicable the well established rule that matters in controversy in the actions upon which it is based, but also in all other actions involving the same question, and upon all matters involved in the issues which might have been litigated and decided in the case; the presumption being that all such issues were met and decided. (Cases cited). The judgment operates as res judicata, not only in regard

to the existence of the plaintiff's cause of action, but as to the nonexistence of the defense which was not pleaded."

For further authorities on this identical question see the following:

C. J. S. Vol. 50 Paragraph 657

Curtiss v. Crooks, 66 Pac. 2nd 1140. Washington.

Besore v. Metropolitan Trust Co. et al. 234 Pac. (2d) 296.

Bennett v. City of Salem et al. 235 Pac. (2d) 772. Oregon.

When the objection of the Appellant in this case to the introduction of any evidence in support of the affirmative defense of the Respondent was overruled, the court permitted to be introduced in evidence, among other exhibits, the motion of the Respondent for a rehearing before the Supreme Court of Arizona, which is designated as Exhibit P-15. In this motion the Respondent raises the very question that he pleads in his affirmative defense in this action and contends the court should have considered both of his theories raised by his complaint (Exhibit P-14) in his first and second causes of actions, and if the court will examine his complaint (Exhibit P-14) he pleads therein the very defense he interposes in this action, which the Appellant herein contends was fully determined and adjudicated in the former action. We quote from this motion:

"Comes now the Appellee in the above entitled appeal and respectfully moves the court for a rehearing upon the following grounds:

That the decision of the court is in error in holding that the action was one solely to recover money loaned, and in failing to consider the other theories of the

complaint, and in holding that the evidence was not sufficient to justify a recovery by the plaintiff, and in reversing the judgment of the lower court in favor of the plaintiff and against the defendants, for the reasons following:

1. The complaint set forth, in addition to a cause of action for money loaned, a good cause of action to recover a down payment made under a preliminary contract wherein no provision was made for the forfeiture of such down payment, and the parties had agreed that the plaintiff might rescind the contract and recover such down payment in the event his attorneys determined that the property being purchased was subject to certain Government regulations, as well as setting forth facts entitling plaintiff to recover said down payment on the theory of unjust enrichment; and

2. The evidence was sufficient to show that the amount sued for was loaned by plaintiff to defendants; and

3. The evidence did not show any agreement between the parties for a forfeiture of said down payment; and

4. The evidence was sufficient to show that said down payment was made under preliminary agreement as alleged in the complaint and that plaintiff had the right to thereunder rescind said contract and recover such down payment; and

5. The evidence was sufficient to show that plaintiff was entitled to recover said down payment under the theory of unjust enrichment, and:

6. That in view of the whole case, substantial justice was done by the lower court in entering judgment for the plaintiff and against the defendant.

"It is clear from the allegations of the complaint that there was a preliminary agreement between the

parties which the plaintiff could rescind under certain conditions, and that the sum of \$5,000 paid by plaintiff to defendants thereunder, was to be applied as a credit on the purchase price if the sale was consummated . . . Whether the transaction of the plaintiff paying the defendants \$5,000 under such an agreement is described as a loan or as a down payment is immaterial, since it is clear under the allegations that said sum was to be applied as a credit on the purchase price if the final contract of sale was consummated . . . Under the facts alleged, if the transaction did not constitute a loan, then certainly it constituted a down payment on the purchase price made under said preliminary agreement.

Further it is settled in this state that a party may set forth in his complaint two or more claims, regardless of consistency, and either in one count or in separate counts, and need not show on appeal that both theories were sustained by his evidence . . .

The court bases its decision upon the fact that the trial court entered judgment for the plaintiff on his first cause of action, for money loaned, rather than on the second cause of action which set forth the facts of a conditional agreement which was not consummated because the condition upon which it was based was not fulfilled.

The record before the court shows that there was never any requirement or demand made by the defendants for the plaintiff to elect which cause of action it desired to pursue and consequently under the doctrine of substantial justice we respectfully submit that the decision heretofore entered by this court be vacated and judgment entered in favor of the appellee, since on either cause of action he was entitled to prevail over the appellant."

I have quoted briefly from the motion of Respondent above referred to for the purpose of substantiating the position of the Appellant herein, that the very defense attempted to be interposed by the Respondent herein was both pleaded in his complaint before the Superior Court of Arizona, and the very question he raises by his motion for a rehearing before the Supreme Court of Arizona was ruled upon, by both courts, and his motion for a rehearing was denied. The case was remanded to the trial court with directions to enter judgment for the defendants (Appellants herein).

By the denial of the motion for a rehearing of the Respondent herein before the Supreme Court of the State of Arizona, every consideration was given by said court to the very contention the Respondent attempts to plead and prove in this case, and such denial of his said motion constitutes an adjudication of the merits of this case, and said Respondent cannot now interpose his affirmative defense, and retry the case before this court.

- (b) That said purported affirmative defense cannot be interposed in an action on a judgment as a set off or counterclaim.

30 Am. Jur. page 937, Par. 193.

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