1955

Vito Todaro and Guiseppe Fontana v. J. D. Gardner : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Appellants in their Statement of Facts review primarily the court proceedings which first occurred in the State of Arizona and subsequently in the District

Court in the State of Utah. In order to more accurately understand the contentions of the Respondent, in maintaining that the cause of action litigated in the State of Utah, was a different cause of action than the one litigated in the Arizona courts and therefore the doctrine of res adjudicata is not applicable, a statement of the facts and negotiations giving rise to the circumstances leading up to the litigation is felt to be necessary.

Prior to June 27, 1947, Respondent had made preliminary investigations concerning the possible purchase of building's constructed by the appellants at Phoenix, Ariz. (R. 18) The buildings had been constructed pursuant to priorities issued by federal agencies wherein the builders were required to give veterans first priority on a monthly rental basis; (R. 68, 71) The buildings were built as a series of duplexes; (R. 49) however, they were susceptible of being used as a motel. (R. 5) On the 27th day of June, 1947, the Respondent had negotiations with the Appellants and their attorney (R. 19) as result of which instructions were given to a Title and Escrow Company for the purpose of preparing an Escrow Agreement contemplating a sale of the property. (R. 23) At the time of these negotiations the Appellants were being pressed by creditors for payments owing on the property and were anxious to have use of any deposit which might be made by the Respondent. (R. 24, 25, 66) The Respondent agreed to deposit \$5,000.00 to show his good faith but refused to sign any documents until he had had an opportunity to review the contemplated sale with

his attorneys at Salt Lake City and to determine if the building could be used as a motel without risk of violating Government regulations requiring that property be given to veterans for rental units on a monthly basis. (R. 21, 22) A receipt was prepared by the title company for the deposit of the \$5,000.00 by the Respondent and the Appellant signed this receipt. (R. 26) The form used for the receipt was an Earnest Money Agreement. (R. 26) However, it varied from the usual preliminary agreement which is normally signed by the purchaser who makes a deposit subject to approval by the sellers. (R. 26) In this case the purchaser made the deposit but refused to sign the agreement and the sellers signed the agreement evidencing receipt of the \$5,000.00. The Escrow Company didn't acknowledge receipt of the money since it was paid direct to the seller for immediate payment of obligations on the property. It is the theory of the Respondent that the above transaction constituted merely an oral agreement to purchase subject to an express condition precedent.

The Respondent, after advancing the \$5,000.00, made further investigation and received information from a newspaper that a criminal complaint had been filed against the Appellants for violation of the federal regulations previously mentioned. (R. 27, Ex. D-5) The Respondent further conferred with one of his attorneys, Mr. Richard L. Bird (R. 28) at Salt Lake City who wrote a letter to attorneys in Arizona requesting that they further check into the matter of the regulations and the

criminal action. (R. 59, Ex. D-13) In addition, the Respondent and Mr. Lynn S. Richards went to Phoenix, Arizona, and after further investigation at the federal agencies involved, concluded that the property could not be safely operated as a motel free from government regulations and advised the attorney for the Appellants that no contract could be made and demanded return of the \$5,000.00. The attorney for the Appellants stated he would request a return of the money. (R. 32, 52, 53)

At no time did the Respondent sign any agreement agreeing to purchase the property. The only document signed was a receipt heretofore mentioned, signed by the Appellants acknowledging receipt of the \$5,000.00.

The suit in the trial court in Arizona was based upon two counts: The trial court found upon the first count, namely, that the Respondent had loaned the money to the Appellants to meet pressing obligations owing on the property. (Ex. D-16 page 21) The Supreme Court of the State of Arizona reversed the trial court holding that the transaction did not constitute a loan and limited their decision to that factual determination. (Ex. P-18) After the judgment in the trial court in Arizona and before a reversal by the Supreme Court, the Respondent had received payment by virtue of garnishment proceedings on the trial court judgment. Although the Supreme Court had reversed the judgment in favor of the Respondent, since he had received the \$5,000.00, there was no need for him to institute a second proceeding in Arizona courts on the correct theory for recovery of his money.

The Appellants, however, commenced a suit in Utah based upon a minute entry of the trial court ordering the Respondent to return the \$5,000.00 collected on the judgment which had been reversed. This minute entry judgment was merely an order of restitution; not based upon any trial, and was therefore not an adjudication on the merits as to which of the parties was ultimately entitled to the money. In the Utah action an affirmative defense sets out the foregoing circumstances and claims the right to retain the money on the basis that no contract was ever made and the funds were advanced upon the expressed condition precedent that if the property could not be operated as a motel, the money would be returned. The Respondent's theory of the facts and circumstances, were in practically all respects, substantiated even by the testimony of one of the Appellants who testified in the Utah District Court. Mr. Todaro testified: (R. 72)

“Q. Was anything said about what would happen if the deal didn't go through?

A. Well, the only thing Mr. Gardner says, “If the government has got some restriction on,” he says, “I will turn it back.”

Q. He said if the government has got some restrictions on, he will turn it back?

A. “And I will take the money back.” He says, “I won't go through with the deal.”

Q. If that was so, then you were to give him back his money?

A. Yes.”

Later, on redirect examination Mr. Todaro attempted to explain that the above conversation was had after the money had been paid. But since the court found in favor of Respondent and Appellants do not challenge the finding, any conflict in the evidence must be resolved in favor of Respondent.

The Appellants do not argue the sufficiency of the evidence to justify the trial court's decision that the Respondent was entitled to retain the money, but rather the appeal is the sole issue that the judgments of the Arizona courts constitute a defense of res judicata to any determination of the matter on the merits by the Utah Court.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I

THE JUDGMENTS OF THE ARIZONA COURTS ON A CAUSE OF ACTION FOR MONEY LOANED IS NOT RES JUDICATA ON A SEPARATE AND DISTINCT CAUSE OF ACTION FOR MONEY ADVANCED IN CONTEMPLATION OF A SALE OF REAL PROPERTY.

The first three points of the Appellant's brief are all based upon the same argument; namely, that the court committed error by failing to rule that the judgments of the Arizona courts were res judicata as to the cause of action raised by the affirmative defense.

For that reason the Respondents will answer the arguments of those points under the single point above mentioned.

To determine if *res judicata* is a defense in this action and to better understand the arguments of the parties, the scope of the Arizona decision should be clearly understood.

The judgment of the Arizona trial court was entered in favor of the Respondent and against the Appellants on the first cause of action which was for money loaned. (D-16 H-12) Part of the decision of the Arizona Supreme Court is as follows:

‘The sole question to be determined in this case is whether the evidence substantiates plaintiff’s cause of action for money loaned. * * *’

“A careful and close analysis of the plaintiff’s testimony shows that he nowhere testified directly to having made a loan. The sum and substance of his testimony is to the effect that he had orally agreed to purchase the property; that all of the terms and conditions had been agreed upon except one, * * *”

“It must be remembered that the judgment under consideration is predicted solely on a complaint for money loaned. The cause of action is not for a rescission of the contract and was not tried on that theory, and did not seek the return of the \$5,000 on this basis. * * *”

“Plaintiff having failed to produce any direct testimony or any testimony from which an inference might be reasonably drawn to substantiate the theory of a loan, we are compelled to hold that the judgment is wholly unsubstantiated by any

competent evidence. Undoubtedly the trial court was influenced by the fact that the defendants, some days after the abandonment of the contract by plaintiff, were able to and did sell the court for \$210,000 but upon different terms. Counsel have also argued that it would be unfair and inequitable to allow defendants to retain the money upon the theory that such retention would constitute an unjust enrichment. This argument has no place here because such a suggestion would have to be predicated upon the theory of a contract and its rescission. We are not here concerned with the rights of a purchaser in a contract for the sale and purchase of land where the right of rescission is claimed or the attempt is made to avoid a forfeiture. Plaintiff basis his right to recover the \$5,000 here involved and the judgment of the trial court was based solely upon the ground of a loan to defendants. As above pointed out, this claim is wholly unsupported by the plaintiff's evidence though giving it, and all reasonable inference to be drawn therefrom, full faith and credit.

"The judgment of the lower court is reversed and the cause remanded to the trial with directions to enter judgment for the defendant. * * *"

From the judgment of the trial court and the decision of the Supreme Court, it is clear that the only issue adjudicated and determined by those decisions was whether the Respondent was entitled to the return of the money on the theory of money loaned. The trial in the Utah District Court was on a completely different theory, namely, that no contract was made or consummated, that funds were advanced in anticipation of the

purchase of property for a motel upon an expressed condition precedent. There was never any written agreement signed by the Respondent. The Appellant in his testimony virtually admitted that the money was advanced subject to the Respondent satisfying himself that the properties could be operated as a motel free and clear of any government regulations to the contrary. It is the contention of the Respondent that the adjudication of these issues constitutes a separate cause of action.

A distinction should be made between a whole or different cause of action and component issues or parts of the same cause of action. There is no serious argument with the citations of authorities and the proposition stated by the Appellants in their brief that all issues of a cause of action which may, can, or ~~shall~~ ^{should} be litigated in a trial, must be so litigated, and that a decision on the merits as to that cause of action is a bar to any further attempt to relitigate any such issues; however, the rule of law is substantially different where the cause of action, even though based upon the same facts, is different in the second suit or trial.

In reply to the first three points of Appellants brief the Respondent submits that there is only one essential issue for determination by the court, namely, do the judgements rendered by the Arizona Courts constitute res judicata as to the affirmative defense, set off, or counterclaim interposed by the Respondent. It will be conceded at the outset that if the affirmative defense, set off, or counterclaim as interposed by the Respondent

is the same cause of action as has been litigated in Arizona, it would be *res judicata* and the Utah Courts would be required to give full faith and credit to the Arizona decisions. On the other hand, if the issues raised in the set off, affirmative defense, or counterclaim are different and constitute a different cause of action, then it would not be *res judicata* and the full faith and credit clause of the Federal Constitution would have no application.

In the Appellants brief numerous quotations from both American Jurisprudence and *Corpus Juris Secundum* were set out. Respondents respectfully submits these additional quotations from those authorities should be cited.

30 Am. Jur. 946, Judgments, Sec. 210:

“The doctrine of *res judicata* is not available as a bar to a subsequent action if the judgment in the former action was rendered because of a misconception of the remedy available or of the proper form of proceeding. In such situation, the plaintiff is entitled to bring the proper proceeding to enforce his action.”

50 C. J. S., Judgments, Sec. 649, Theory of Action or Recovery:

“Where plaintiff is defeated in an action based on a certain theory of his legal rights or as to the legal effects of a given transaction or state of facts through failure to substantiate his view of the case, this will not as a rule preclude him from renewing the litigation, without any change in the facts, but basing his claim on a new and more correct theory. It has been held that

this rule applies where plaintiff * * * in the second suit * * * alleges a different ground of liability on the part of defendant, where he fails to establish defendant's liability under a written instrument, and afterward seeks recovery as on a resulting trust or on the ground of fraud or mistake, where, having failed to establish a specific lien on property, he sues again on the ground of the personal liability of defendant; where, having sued for the price of property and failed to prove a sale, he brings a new action for its use or detention; where an unsuccessful attempt to enforce a liability under a statute is followed by an action to hold the same defendant liable on the same facts as at common law or vice versa; where the two actions are brought under different statutes; or where, after an adverse decision in an action brought under state law, plaintiff sues in the state court under a federal law. A similar rule as to the right to bring a second action on a different theory obtains in equity; where the equities of a second bill are materially different from the first, although the origin of both is the same, the adjudication of the first is no bar to the second."

In *Utah-Idaho Central Railway Company vs. Industrial Commission*, 84 Utah 364, 35 Pac. 2nd 842, 94 A. L. R. 1423, the Utah Supreme Court quoted with approval from an Indiana case as follows:

"A party who imagins he has two or more remedies, or who misconceives his rights, is not to be deprived of all remedy because he first tries a wrong one; which is not inconsistent with his true and effectual remedy, which he should have pursued in the first instance (Citing Au-

thorities.) Election of remedies is the act of choosing between the different modes of procedure and relief allowed by law on the same state of facts, which modes may be termed co-existing remedies. (Citing Text.) The result of appellee's first action led him where he was in the first instance, and his present action to enforce his only remedy is not inconsistent therewith."

"In either case he had no chance of any other existing remedy. That he in the first instance and on the facts misconceived the remedy, and pursued one which the law did not afford him, did not thereafter bar or estoppe him on the same facts from pursuing the only legal remedy that in the first instance was open to him."

In *Welsh, Driscoll & Buck vs. Buck*, 64, Utah 579, 232 Pac. 911, the court held that a judgment, in a foreclosure suit against an estate, dismissing the suit for want of equity, because the instrument sued on as a mortgage was not such in fact, was not a bar to a later assertion of such claim in the Probate Court. In so doing the court stated:

"The plaintiffs had erroneously taken the view that they held a mortgage, which they sought to establish and foreclose and thereby satisfy their claim. There is ample authority to the effect that, where a mistake had been made in the pursuance of a remedy, such a mistake is not a bar to the presenting of proper action." (Citation of Authorities)

The case of *Detroit Heating and Lighting Company vs. Stevens* 20 Ut. 241, 58 P. 193 also holds in accordance with the foregoing rule.

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